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St Swithun's School (Winchester) (a company limited by guarantee)
REPORT OF THE COUNCIL, INCORPORATING THE STRATEGIC REPORT
For the year ended 31 July 2022

The Council submits its annual report and strategic report for the year ended 31 July 2022, under the Charities
Act 2011, together with the audited financial statements for the year, and confirms that the latter comply with
the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and the Charities SORP(FRS102) 2015.

REFERENCE AND ADMINISTRATION

St Swithun’s School (the school) was founded in 1884, and incorporated as a Company Limited by Guarantee in
1910. As such, it has no share capital. The school is registered as Company number 110692 and Charity number
307335, '

AIMS AND OBJECTIVES
Objects

The object of the school, as defined in the Articles of Association, is to provide sound and thorough education
for girls and young children of both sexes in accordance with the principles of the Church of England. The
Governors interpret this to mean that St Swithun’s will provide an excellent academic education and nurture
the spiritual, moral, social, cultural and physical development of its pupils. St Swithun'’s is a leading GSA (Girls’
School Assaciation) school offering day, weekly boarding and full boarding for some 520 girls aged 11-18. The
adjoining IAPS Prep School (Independent Association of Prep Schools) caters for girls aged 4-11, with a co-
educational nursery from age 3.

Aims

In order to achieve the stated object of the school, the following aims were agreed during a previous period and
re-affirmed in February 2019:

. Academic. To prepare girls for public examinations and higher education in a stimulating and
scholarly environment in which the girls develop intellectual curiosity, independence of mind and the
ability to take responsibility for their own learning. They are encouraged to achieve their personal
best. Prep school girls are prepared for entry into senior school at age eleven -

. School community. To provide a happy, safe and supportive community based on Christian values in
which al! girls are given the space to develop their spirituality and are encouraged to understand and
celebrate difference, and to be kind to others

. Co-curricular. To provide a wide range of opportunities beyond the classroom so that girls can
discover individual passions and develop a range of characteristics such as resilience, initiative,
creativity, perseverance, self-confidence, the ability to work in a team and to honour one’s
commitments. To encourage habits to ensure good physical and mental health both at school and in
the future such as exercise, healthy eating and the art of relaxation

. Beyond the school gates. To teach the girls compassion, an understanding of the wider world and
their role in it, a sense of duty and a desire for justice

. Looking towards the future. To provide high-quality higher education and careers advice and a
supportive old girls’ network

e  Keeping in touch. To communicate in a timely and constructive fashion with parents and other
members of the St Swithun’s family in order to develop relationships conducive to offering the best
possible education.

The aims and objectives are reviewed annually by the School Council.
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St Swithun's School (Winchester) (a company limited by guarantee)
REPORT OF THE COUNCIL, INCORPORATING THE STRATEGIC REPORT
For the year ended 31 July 2022

AIMS AND OBIJECTIVES (continued)

While these aims apply across the school, the prep school has the following complementary aims:

To provide a secure nurturing environment where the spirit of cooperation and respect for others is
paramount

To meet the intellectual, physical and emotional needs of each individual child by offering a broad,
balanced, stimulating and differentiated curriculum and by fostering high self-esteem, seif-motivation
and self-expression

To create an environment where children are valued, cherished and challenged and as a result learn
to the best of their ability

To have a happy school with smiling, confident and articulate children, where everyone feels a sense
of worth.

Objectives for the Year

The objectives for this year have remained consistent whilst dealing with the ongoing Covid-19 pandemic:

to continue to provide a well-ordered, efficiently managed, supportive environment in which each
child would be able to fulfil his/her intellectual physical and creative potential and take responsibility
for his/her learning. In the prep school children are encouraged to develop independence, self-
motivation and self-esteem
to continue to achieve a high level of academic performance
to continue the programme of improvement to educational, residential and other facilities
to provide public benefit through our charitable activities
to continue the fund-raising campaign to provide bursary funds that provide financial support to those
unable to afford fees
to achieve a reputation as a school that is well known for its:

o excellent all-round education

o forward-looking pedagogy

o scholarship and the attitudes of mind it develops in its students
to enhance St Swithun's reputation which may lead to it being oversubscribed
to generate an annual surplus of at least 10% of fee income allowing continuous investment in new
facilities and a rolling maintenance programme.

In setting their objectives for the year and planning activities, the Governors have given careful consideration to
the Charity Commission’s general guidance on public benefit and in particular to its supplementary guidance on
advancing education and fee-charging, noting the amendments made following the judicial review in 2011. They
have also noted and responded to governmental expectations that independent schools increase the extent to
which they share their facilities with maintained schools and the local community.

Principal Activities of the Year

St Swithun's principal activity continues to be the provision of education for girls and young children of both
sexes in accordance with the principles of the Church of England, and the letting of our facilities for both
charitable and commercial purposes.
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St Swithun's School (Winchester) (a company limited by guarantee)
REPORT OF THE COUNCIL, INCORPORATING THE STRATEGIC REPORT
For the year ended 31 July 2022

PUBLIC BENEFIT
Widening access

Bursaries have been awarded over the past year at a cost of £1,348,672 (7.8% of fee income) to some 65 pupils,
of which 28 were 100% of fees. in order to truly widen access, bursaries are available to cover both fees and
other necessary expenses appropriate for a pupil at the school. We also provide 23 scholarships for girls to St
Katherine’s School, Lira, Uganda, funded from volunteer activities.

State school partnerships

Our state school partnerships programme delivers weekly drama, sport, art and reading enrichment sessions to
220 primary pupils from our partner primary schools (All Saints, Sun Hill, Oliver’s Battery and South Wonston).
70 St Swithun's students, supervised by St Swithun’s staff, are involved in delivering these sessions. Our
swimming programme continues to provide weekly swimming tuition to primary school pupils, many of whom
begin as non-swimmers. Over 120 pupils from Four Marks, All Saints, South Wonston and Oliver’s Battery benefit
from this programme, with facilities, tuition and transport provided either in part or in full by St Swithun’s.

We continue to share our facilities for the benefit of state school pupils. As at the end of the summer term, over
100 Year 7 athletes from local state schools have competed in a Hampshire Schools’ Athletics Association event
hosted on our athletics track, and 80 primary school tennis players have used our tennis courts through our
partnership with the North Eastleigh and Winchester Primary School Games organisation. For our US Community
Service Day in July, we hosted 70 Year 6 pupils from local primary schools for a day of sporting activity, organised
by US students and staff.

When not required for St Swithun’s use, our minibuses have transported primary school pupils to enrichment
events across the county that they would otherwise not have had access to. These include cultural events, STEM
days and pupil wellbeing courses.

Science in a Suitcase, the portable science resource developed by our science department, is in much demand
by science co-ordinators in primary schools and is regularly out ‘on loan’, at no cost.

Fundraising

Each year the school community selects three charitable organisations to support during the year, from a range
of charities nominated by pupils. Where possible representatives of these charities visit and speak to pupils, or
send resources so the Assist Team - made up of girls in the 6th form - can raise awareness of the charities.
Almost all fundraising events throughout the year support these causes. School charities selected for 2021/22
were Bloody Good Period, Clouds of Hope and Stop Domestic Abuse.

This was the first year of being able to raise money more normally following the pandemic and the school
responded enthusiastically, raising over £15,000 for the school charities. In addition, a desire to respond to the
invasion of Ukraine resulted first in large amounts of clothing, sleeping bags and supplies being donated and
then, in partnership with a Ukrainian organisation, raising an extra £10,000 to purchase an ambulance to be
used to help victims of the conflict. All Year 9 pupils embark on The Big Give — a philanthropy five-week course
which provides the opportunity to distribute specifically donated money to a range of charities.
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St Swithun's School (Winchester) (a company limited by guarantee)
REPORT OF THE COUNCIL, INCORPORATING THE STRATEGIC REPORT
For the year ended 31 July 2022

Fundraising (continued)

In addition, pupils and staff have supported the Winchester Women's Refuge, the Winchester Nightshelter, the
FCIS shoebox appeal and our sister school St. Katherine’s, Uganda through a range of fundraising and practical
activities.

In the last year, pupils and staff at St Swithun’s Prep School have supported Xmas jumper day and Red Nose day.

The senior school charities for 2022/23 have been chosen by'pupils as Kids for Kids, Planned Parenthood and
HART UK.

STRATEGIC REPORT

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Record of achievements and performance for the year

In 2021/22 the school had 517 pupils in the senior school and 189 in the prep school. In addition to academic
achievements, both schools maintained a full programme of sporting, musical and artistic activities during the
year.

The school can again justifiably claim to be among the highest achieving girls’ schools in the country, consistently
achieving excellent results in public examinations at both GCSE and A Level.

In summer 2022 37.3% of A-level entries were awarded A*, compared with the national average of 14.6%. 75.3%
of entries were awarded A* or A grades, compared with 36.4% for all schools in the UK.

At GCSE level 66.6% of entries were graded 9/8/A*, compared with the national average of 15.1%
85.0% of entries were awarded grades 9/8/7 and A*/A, compared with 26.3% for all schools in the UK.

The school was inspected by the Independent Schools Inspectorate in January 2020. The inspections covered
Regulatory Compliance only and both senior and prep schools had fully met all the standards in the regulations
and were therefore judged compliant.

Financial results of the school and school letting company

The financial results for the year were below expectations; full details are shown in the attached financial
statements and the results have been summarised below:-

The Unrestricted Net Incoming Resources amounted to a surplus of £445,655 (2021: surplus of £1,119,673) with
no FRS102 pension adjustment required. This was added to the brought forward funds to give an amount of
£30,701,125 attributable to the unrestricted fund at the year-end.

The statement of financial activities {SOFA) on page 29 contains details of the incoming resources for the year.

Included in total incoming resources of £16,790,583 is £15,565,560 of net school fees {93%) and £262,535 of
restricted donations (2%) . Gross fees for the year were £493,486 higher than expectation. Total resources
expended were £251,162 higher than expected at £16,340,326, of which £15,821,938 (97%) was used in the
charitable activities of the charity.
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St Swithun's School (Winchester) (a company limited by guarantee)
REPORT OF THE COUNCIL, INCORPORATING THE STRATEGIC REPORT
For the year ended 31 July 2022

Financial results of the schoo! and school letting company (continued)

In the restricted and endowment funds, the overall surplus for the year amounted to £15,560 (2021: surplus of
£483,721). This includes donations for bursary provision of £178,966 plus £83,569 income for specific projects
and income from restricted investments of £43,437 Overall these leave £2,192,315 attributable to restricted
funds and £66,219 to endowment funds at the year end.

All taxable profits from the Letting Company are transferred to the school by gift aid to further support our
charitable aims.

Going Concern evaluation

The Council has considered several factors when forming their conclusion as to the use of the going concern
basis for the preparation of these financial statements including a review of the updated forecasts to 31 July
2024 and a consideration of the key risks. These include the impact of external economic factors including the
energy market volatility, that could negatively impact the school and working capital requirements.

The forecast surpluses for 2022-23 and 2023-24 have been severely affected by the global energy market crisis,
which has seen an unexpected 600% rise in energy costs. This sits alongside a significant rise in national inflation
and strong upward pressure on staff salaries; all pressures by which the school is equally affected.

All these factors have inevitably caused significant increases in the operating cost base of the school. However,
the Council has taken measures which, combined with the use of strategic reserves, will alleviate this pressure
whilst maintaining the level of commitment to the education of the girls and developing the offer to meet the
expectations of parents now and in the future.

Sustaining and increasing pupil numbers remains a key risk, which is assessed on an ongoing basis. The school
has made a cautious start to the school year with 700 pupils. This is in line with the budgeted roll set in July
2022. Fee income for the first term of the 22/23 school year has been strong with an indication that payment
of fees will be consistent with previous years. Early indications are strong for the September 2023 intake.

At the year-end, the school had surplus free reserves of £2,593,828. This comprises £5,081,254 unrestricted
cash plus £489,586 working capital less net creditors of £2,977,012.

Council reviews the School’s financial plans on a termly basis by monitoring income and expenditure against
forecasts within the context of the annual budget and a rolling 10-year financial plan. Cash flows are also closely
reviewed, particularly in the light of the School’s borrowing commitments and repayment requirements.
Financial sensitivity analysis is incorporated into Council information, centred on key assumptions (roll, fees, and
staff costs).

Council reviews all known major risks to the schoo! and states the action being taken to alleviate them on a
rolling annual basis. The key risks to which the school is subject are highlighted in the strategic report. The
school’s strategic development plan remains dynamic and will be further reviewed once the impact of the
ongoing energy market volatility is better known. It is not anticipated that this will change the underpinning
aims, vision or ethos of the school.

Having regard to all the above, the Governors have a reasonable expectation that the School has adequate
resources to continue its activities for the foreseeable future and consider that there are no material
uncertainties over the school’s financial viability. Accordingly, they continue to adopt the going concern basis
in preparing the financial statements as outlined in the Statement of Members Responsibilities on page 25.
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St Swithun's School (Winchester) (a company limited by guarantee)
REPORT OF THE COUNCIL, INCORPORATING THE STRATEGIC REPORT
For the year ended 31 July 2022

School reserves policy

At 31 July 2022 the Group has total net assets and reserves of £32,959,659. This comprises restricted funds of
£2,192,315, endowment funds of £66,219 and unrestricted funds (including equity in fixed assets) of
£30,701,125. The total value of the school’s fixed assets, which are all held for use in the school, is £31,648,226,
against which asset-specific creditors (bank loans) are held of £4,290,929. Free reserves, defined as unrestricted
funds less fixed assets (net of asset-specific loans) are in surplus by £2,593,828. This comprises unrestricted
current assets of £5,570,840 less net current liabilities of £2,736,366 and long term creditors, (excluding bank
loans) of £240,646. There is also a designated fund of £422,000 to meet future contributions to the closed legacy
retirement benefit scheme for support staff.

Council have considered an appropriate target level for the school’s free reserves. Having regard to the
likelihood of financial risks and mitigating factors, the trustees consider the target level of free reserves for the
charity should be approximately 2 months expenditure {(currently forecast at £2.78M) against which the figure
reached in the current year, as above, is £2.59M. In addition, the school hold some £1.9M equity (at cost) in its
disposable properties and £750K in other investments which could be sold or mortgaged to generate additional
- funding if required.

At the year-end, the unrestricted cash at bank of £5,081,254 is available for working capital requirements.
It is felt that this school reserves policy remains a valid position.

Council reviews the School’s financial plans on a termly basis by monitoring income and expenditure against
forecasts within the context of the annual budget and a rolling 10-year financial plan. Cash flows are also closely
reviewed, particularly in the light of the School’s borrowing commitments and repayment requirements.

The Council is of the opinion that given the current balance sheet and financial projections, future pupil
registrations, as well as available banking facilities and disposable properties and investments there is no need
to set aside additional free reserves.

Investment powers, policy and performance

The investment power of the Council is given by the Articles of Association. The current policy is that all
investments must be safe and ethical and advice is sought as required before new investments are made.
Sufficient working capital is held in an instant access interest bearing account to meet all requirements as they
fall due. Investments which represent the composition fee fund are held in UK Government gilts, and the
remaining investments are held in fixed term cash deposits and charity-specific equity based managed funds.

The total return performance of the significant restricted investment is assessed against an industry benchmark,
alternative equivalent charity product and base rate + 3%.

The performance in the year exceeded the above assessment criteria and will continued to be reviewed termly
to ensure it is meeting two of the above three assessment criteria. The major investment is with CCLA where
the investment fund has a total return of -2.57% versus an industry comparator of -2.92% during a year of
significant market turbulence. The investments are all held for the long term.

PLANS FOR THE FUTURE

The school reviewed and reaffirmed its aims, ethos and vision during a previous period. 1ts aims, in pursuit of
its charitable object, have been outlined above. Work has continued on the school’s Strategic Plan for 2021-26.
It was presented to the School Council and approved in February 2021. Whilst it does not change the
underpinning aims, vision or ethos of the school, it offers greater focus in key areas.
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St Swithun's School (Winchester) (a company limited by guarantee)
REPORT OF THE COUNCIL, INCORPORATING THE STRATEGIC REPORT
For the year ended 31 July 2022

PLANS FOR THE FUTURE (continued)
The ethos of the school

St Swithun's is an ‘appropriately academic’ school that celebrates intellectual curiosity and the life of the mind,
but not to the exclusion of all else. Pupils are expected to develop individual passions and through them to
acquire a range of skills and characteristics. These characteristics will include a willingness to take risks, to
question and to debate, and to persevere in the face of difficulty. If a girl can immediately excel at everything
asked of her, the bar must be set higher. ' -

All girls need to learn about life beyond the school gates, to appreciate the rich variety of our world, to develop
an understanding of compassion and to value justice. All pupils are encouraged to become involved in
fundraising and community work. They should appreciate how their decisions and their actions can affect those
around them.

St Swithun's was founded by Anna Bramston, daughter of the Dean of Winchester, and Christian values underpin
the school’s approach to education. Within a civilised and caring environment, all girls and staff are valued for
their individual gifts and encouraged to develop a sense of spirituality and of kindness. Kindness and tolerance
are at the heart of the school community.

School vision

The revised Vision is ‘A world-class girls’ boarding and day school offering a complete education’. The senior
school’s vision includes a girls’ school well-known for its excellent all-round education; its forward-looking
teaching methods; its scholarship; and the attitudes of mind it fosters in its students. It will house a civilised and
compassionate community in secure and well-maintained buildings, and it will thoroughly prepare all its pupils
for life beyond its gates. It will be regarded by teachers as a desirable school in which to work and develop one’s
craft.

By the time a girl leaves she will be courageous, compassionate, committed and self-confident with a love of
‘learning, a moral compass and a sense of humour.

The prep school vision is of a school in which every child is known, cherished and at the same time encouraged
to be fearless in an inspiring teaching and learning environment. It is an environment in which pupils and staff
have warm, respectful relationships. The children enjoy going to school and the staff relish having the
opportunity to share adventures, interests and laughter.

School’s mission

The school’s mission is to provide outstanding pastoral care and teaching expertise to create in every individual
student a unique tapestry of strengths and interests.

School’s purpose

The school’s purpose is to develop resilient, enquiring, optimistic and collaborative women. They will stand on
their own two feet and pull others up to stand alongside them.
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St Swithun's School (Winchester) (a company limited by guarantee)
REPORT OF THE COUNCIL, INCORPORATING THE STRATEGIC REPORT
For the year ended 31 July 2022

School’s purpose {continued)
There are 12 sub-objectives, divided into three sections, to provide appropriate focus:

Academic

1. To achieve consistently high academic results.

2. To prepare students for success in the modern world.

3. To provide a first-class sixth form experience.

Pastoral

4, To support high levels of wellbeing amongst students and staff.

5. To be diverse and inclusive (within the context of being a girls’ school).
6. To provide a modern, inclusive boarding experience.

7. To provide outstanding co-curricular activities.

Business-focused

8. To develop and sustain our strong reputation as a world-class girls’ boarding and day school
offering a complete education in order to ensure that we are full.
9. To guarantee an outstanding customer experience.

10. To develop our facilities.
11.  To ensure the financial sustainability of the school.
12.  To ensure the environmental sustainability of the school.

Structure

The school Council intends that St Swithun’s remain a single sex, day and boarding school for girls in the senior
school and day only school in the prep school and a co-educational nursery. In the senior school, numbers have
increased significantly in the preceding four years and a number of structural and organisational changes have
been made to cater for this. We aim to continue to increase boarding numbers to re-establish, in the long term,
a 50:50 mix of boarding and day pupils in the senior school (currently 42% boarding). We are increasing our
marketing activity to attract additional pupils at 11+ and into the prep school, particularly in early years.

In the prep school we aim to offer increased capacity and the benefits of smaller class sizes to increase overall
numbers. Numbers are steadily increasing and we aim for numbers to increase each year until capacity (256) is
achieved.

Academic

The Council's academic aspirations in the senior school are high and our aims are to enable every pupil: to fulfil
- her potential; to take responsibility for her own learning; and to increase her intellectual curiosity. We will
continue to provide a broad general curriculum seeking to achieve excellent examination results enabling
admission to all universities and preparing pupils for later life. We will continue to programme for the GCSE,
IGCSE and A Level public examination for the foreseeable future, while monitoring any changes occurring
nationally and in Higher Education that may impact on this decision. We see the development of the sixth form
experience and improved sports facilities as being critical to future success and these will be the subject of
development feasibility work in the coming year.

In the prep school the Council aims to provide a stimulating environment in which each pupil can flourish in the
broadest sense; foster an eagerness to learn, to strive, to achieve, and to realise the potential of each pupil -
academically, creatively, on the sports field and at play. We will also prepare pupils for a move to senior
education and equip them for this transition.
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St Swithun's School (Winchester) (a company limited by guarantee)
REPORT OF THE COUNCIL, INCORPORATING THE STRATEGIC REPORT
For the year ended 31 July 2022

Selection

St Swithun’s welcomes pupils from all backgrounds.

Final selection of external candidates for entry depends upon the availability of places, performancé at Common
Pre-test or the Ukiset test and Common Entrance or our own entry papers as well as the receipt of a satisfactory
reference from the candidate’s current head teacher. Sixth-form entry depends on CAT 4 or Ukiset tests
and written assessments as well as subject-based interviews.

Final selection of candidates for senior-school entry from St Swithun’s Prep depends upon the headmaster’s
recommendation for internal transfer, and on the pre-test, Common Entrance and satisfactory academic
reference for late-joiners to year 5 as well as those who, in the headmaster’s view, require additional assessment
in their year 6.

We aim to offer scholarships in the senior school to those of the appropriate academic standard. Academic and
music scholarships are available at 11+, 13+ and 16+. Sports scholarships are awarded at the end of year 9 when
we believe that all girls, whether they joined us in year 7 or year 9, will have had the opportunity to develop
skills in all of the sports we offer. Sports scholarships are also awarded at 16+.

Bursary Policy

For 2022-23 the school remains committed to the provision of some £1.44M in bursary payments. This is 8.1%
of predicted fee income. The school’s aim remains to continue to maintain the level of bursary awards to pupils
to at least the equivalent of 5% of fee income. This will be assisted by support from the Bramston Appeal and
Bramston Bursary Foundation. This is expected to amount to £229K in 2022-23 (1.2 % of gross fee income).

In 2022/23 there will be 54 pupils in receipt of means tested awards. This includes 36 bursaries of between 75-
110%.

The criteria for receiving awards are determined by the Bursary Committee on an annual basis. Selection for the
award of any bursary is based on meeting the .normal academic requirements for entry to the senior or prep
school as appropriate, and an assessment of suitability carried out by the Headmistress. No exceptional
proficiency in any academic or other area of education is required. The recruitment of candidates is achieved by
all available means including marketing and advertising procedures, by direct liaison with local feeder primary
schools, by links with partnership organisations and by word of mouth.

The Bursary Committee agrees the annual provision of funds and then delegates the recruitment and selection
of candidates to the head teachers.

As well as seeking to provide wider access through bursary provision we shall continue to provide help to parents
who fall on hard times until such time as they are able to pay the full fees again. The same selection and financial
criteria will apply as agreed for bursaries on entry to the school.

Development (Fundraising) and Alumnae Relations

Bramston Bursary Foundation (BBF)

The Bramston Bursary Foundation’s mission remains dedicated to helping young girls who are at risk of going
into care, or who may already be trying to cope with the instability of a life in care, through the provision of fully

funded boarding places at St Swithun’s School.

The stability, security, opportunity, and a family of inspiring positive role models can be simply life changing.
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Bramston Bursary Foundation (BBF) (continued)

The Foundation has also expanded its remit in order to help girls who are dealing with multiple challenging issues
in their critically under-resourced communities.

The school continues to work with the Royal National Children’s Springboard Foundation, Buttle UK and
Hampshire and Isle of Wight Virtual School and College for Children in Care (Hampshire County Council) to help
identify girls who could flourish at the school.

The BBF sets an annual fundraising target of £250,000 in order to fund 50% of two new bursary places each
academic year. With 50% match funding provided by St Swithun’s School, this equates to seven years
education for these two places. The school also provides an additional 10% funding in order to fund school
uniform, educational trips and social activities.

On some occasions, we will be able to secure funding from local government or our partner charities. In these
instances, this will reduce the amount of match funding provided by the school.

The BBF remains flexible in regards to when a new beneficiary joins the school, as it may not always be in L4
(11+). It may be that they join higher up in the senior school or due to the circumstances involved, as is the case
for one beneficiary, they join St Swithun’s Prep School.

In addition to our BBF bursaries, St Swithun’s allocates a percentage of its annual fee income to support different
types of bursaries, in the belief that nothing should stop a talented and hardworking girl from reaching her full
potential.

These are:

o Affordability bursaries - where new parents to the school need support, up to 100% of the fees. These
can be for girls from homes where income is at a very low level and an independent education would
otherwise be out of reach, or for girls who are identified by HMC (Headmasters’ and Headmistresses’
Conference) as HMC Projects scholars from Eastern European countries.

e Armed Forces bursaries - a small number of 20% boarding bursaries for new HM Armed Forces families
joining the school.

e Hardship bursaries - where parents of current students can no longer afford a St Swithun’s education.
This normally results from a significant change of circumstances in the family situation, such as the
death of a parent.

For clarity - these affordability bursaries, armed forces bursaries and hardship bursaries are entirely separate
from the Bramston Bursary Foundation. They are funded through a combination of fee income and interest and
investment income from the Bramston Bursary Fund (not to be confused with the Bramston Bursary
Foundation). The Bramston Bursary Fund was established over a decade ago and invited philanthropic
contributions to support a wide range of bursaries. This fund currently stands at £1,360K.

BBF will continue to fund 50% of two new places {one joining L4 and one joining L5) from September 2022. The
L4 place is for the student BBF is already fully supporting in the prep school. The L5 place is for a girl identified
by the Royal National Children’s SpringBoard Foundation.

Fund-raising activities and significant events

During this academic year a total of £45,000 has been received from legacy donors. £40K is to support an
existing bursary and £5K to fund a future capital project.
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Fund-raising activities and significant events (continued)

Overall, more than £97,000 has been received for the Bramston Bursary Foundation and the Bramston Bursary
Fund.

There were two significant BBF events in the calendar in the summer term:
- The lvy Ball: Jointly hosted by the Senior School Parents’ Association and the BBF, with proceeds going
to the BBF. This event also had an online auction attached to it, to help raise funds for the BBF.
- Tichborne House —Garden Open Day, with open gardens with plant sale.
Together these two events raised over £24,000.

The 1884 CLUB continues to go from strength to strength with numbers continuing to rise (over 70), including
five Gold Club members.

Jill Isaac Festival of Scholarship

By kind permission of Malcolm Isaac, the school invited the Mayor of Winchester to officiate at the inaugural Jill
Isaac Festival of Scholarship. Nine sixth form students explained their scholarly achievements and interests
whilst sharing tea with the Mayor. The event reflected the aspirations of Malcolm Isaac when talking about Jili
and the Jill Isaac Study Centre.

Alumnae Engagement
The following events and activities were held during the year:

St Swithun’s Live was once again a successful evening of music and, having been opened up to the wider school
community, provided another opportunity to raise funds for the BBF.

Zara Rutherford returned to St Swithun’s to speak to a wider school community audience about her record-
breaking adventure flying solo around the world.

Old Girls’ Day - On 12 September 2021, we held our first online Old Girls’ Day. The virtual reunion included videos
of boarding houses, a St Swithun’s Question Time and a recording of an Old Girls’ virtual choir.

OGA e-news has been distributed to over 1,000 Old Girls monthly.

Professional Guidance Department

All planned professional talks were delivered in the spring term, either in person or virtually and a new
programme is being developed for the autumn term. There is no programme for the summer term due to exam
commitments.

Work continues to develop the St Swithun’s online community hub. The schoal has seized the opportunity to
employ, on a mutually beneficial programme, five young KICKSTART employees to undertake work and projects
to develop their skills and experience. One of them is improving the quality of data in the online community
hub and contacting alumnae to encourage them to update their profile information. In this way we hope to
increase awareness of the Hub, online registrations, career data and engagement.

During this process we are also asking members to update their GDPR contact preferences to enable more
thorough future communications with OGs.

Governance, risk management and resources

The School Council receives regular reports and updates in fundraising regulations and guidance through the
Bursary, Fundraising and Public Benefit Committee. The school does not engage with any external third party
fundraisers. There have been no complaints in the period regarding inappropriate or intrusive contact.
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Governance, risk management and resources (continued)

The school recruited a new Director of Development and Alumnae in August 2022, after the departure of the
previous Director in April 2022.

The staffing costs of the development and alumnae office are met by the school rather than taken from the
money donated.

Staff — Employment Policy
The aims of the School's recruitment policy are as follows:-

. To ensure that the best possible governors, staff and volunteers are recruited on the basis of their
merits, abilities and suitability for the position;

. To ensure that all job applicants are considered equitably and consistently. The school is an equal
opportunities employer;

. To ensure that no job applicant is treated unfairly on any grounds including age, disability, gender
reassignment, marital and/or civil partnership status, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or
belief, sex or sexual orientation.

. To ensure compliance with all relevant recommendations and guidance including the
recommendations of the DfE in "Keeping Children Safe in Education (Sep 2018 and in future Sep
2019)", the recommendations in “Boarding Schools — National Minimum Standards April 2015” and
the Code of Practice published by the Disclosure & Barring Service (D8S); KCSIiE runs along the non-
statutory interim guidance on safeguarding in schools, colleges and other providers during the
coronavirus outbreak.

. To ensure that the School meets its commitment to safeguarding and promoting the welfare of
children and young people by carrying out all necessary pre-employment checks.

The Council aims to recruit and retain the best staff available. We seek to employ high quality, enthusiastic and
talented teachers and support staff in all departments and will continue to encourage and support their
professional development throughout their time with us. This will include high calibre NQTs and other trainees
who the school will assist with their professional development.

The intention is that staff are:

Valued;
. Well remunerated and rewarded;
. The beneficiaries of terms and conditions that are reasonable, transparent and consistent;
. Provided with the facilities required to allow them to perform to the highest level;
. Provided with opportunities and support to develop to their full potential.

Information is provided to staff in a variety of formats during induction and during their time at the school. This
includes information contained in the Staff Handbook, Teachers’ Handbook, and verbal briefings at staff
meetings and inset training.
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Staff — Employment Policy (continued)

All staff undergo a number of safeguarding, data protection, whistleblowing and health and safety training
modules. All staff are expected to adhere to the school’s code of conduct and in the case of teachers, DfES
‘Teachers’ Standards.

Facilities

The Council also aims to continue to improve our facilities, both in our buildings and equipment and in the
provision of information and communication technology. It is a traditional school embracing modern technology
and contemporary teaching methods. While recognising the need for a secure site we aim to offer an attractive
welcoming campus with all new development being in keeping with the main school buildings and as
environmentally efficient as possible. It is also our intention to allow access to and use of as many of our facilities
as practical to the local community and to other charitable organisations. Development projects continue to
feature and the lJill Isaac Study Centre was completed this year. In the coming year, feasibility studies will be
launched for a sixth form centre and improved sports facilities. Development sits neatly alongside planned
maintenance and continuous improvement across the school spectrum.

STRUCTURE, GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT
Governing Document

St Swithun’s School is governed by its Articles of Assaciation. These were subject to a full review this year (2022}
and approved by the School Council.

Council considers the guidance given in the Charity Commissioners Governance Code. individual members of
Council receive copies of Governance magazine in order that they are kept abreast of best practice and advice
from the Charity Commission. Council is confident that it operates within the guidelines. It will continue to
review its Governance policy and consider opportunities for ongoing development and good practice.

The school is administered by its Trustees in accordance with all current legislation and Charity Commission
requirements. Governance is as transparent as possible and aims to provide clear policy guidance to allow the
school’s senior management to operate efficiently and effectively. Elected Trustees are appointed at the Annual
General Meeting on the basis of nominations received from existing Trustees and after an initial familiarisation
visit to the school. On appointment new Trustees receive a pack of information covering their role and all
relevant policy documents. They also undertake a further induction visit and attend relevant courses, preferably
run by AGBIS, on Governance.

Following election Trustees participate in a range of internal and externally provided training events. During the
previous period Trustees attended an internal strategy review day and attended the following externally run
courses / seminars:
2022: AGBIS Conference and AGM

AGBIS Seminar for New Governors

AGBIS Seminar for Boarding Governors

Internal Safeguarding in Education updates following the re-issue of Keeping Children Safe in Education
(KCSIE)
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Organisational Management

Members of the school council, as the trustees of the charity, are legally responsible for the overall management
and control of both the senior school and the prep school. Council sets and approves strategic direction and
policy and meets three times each year and additionally as required. Council monitors the work of the school’s
management team through its committees and through visits to the school.

All financial matters, including budgets, income and expenditure and cash flows, are scrutinised by the Standing
Committee. The statutory financial statements are scrutinised through the process of annual audit, before all
matters are submitted to Council for approval. The Standing Committee also monitors and reviews the school’s
risk management procedures, annual reports on insurance, safeguarding, health and safety, security and any
other subject that may be relevant to the school's business at any given time.

Academic matters are brought to the attention of Council by the Education Committee, through the Head
teachers’ termly reports and the senior school’s annual departmental reports. The Head teachers’ reports also
include information on pupil numbers and future registrations, staff changes, developments and training, pupil
matters and forthcoming events. The prep school Head also reports to Council on all matters relevant to the
prep school. Other school responsibilities, including bursary provision, fundraising, appointment of Council
members, pay and terms and conditions of employment, and property and building works are monitored by the
Bursary, Fundraising & Public Benefit, Nominations & Remuneration and Development Committees respectively.

Remuneration policy

Details of the school’s remuneration policy are contained in its governance paper and fall under the remit of the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee. Details of its role and responsibilities regarding remuneration are
contained in the following extracts from its terms of reference:

The purpose of the committee is, on behalf of Council, to monitor and advise on matters relating to staff
remuneration, with particular regard to the salaries of senior staff.

With respect to remuneration, the Committee shall:

e determine and agree with Council the framework or broad policy for the remuneration of all
employees;

e in determining such policy, take into account all factors which it deems necessary. The objective of
such policy shall be to ensure that members of staff are provided with appropriate incentives to
encourage enhanced performance and are, in a fair and responsible manner, rewarded for their
individual contributions to the success of the School;

e within the terms of the agreed policy, determine the total individual remuneration package of each
employee. Much of this can be delegated to the Headmistress and the Bursar, working within the
clear guidelines of the Committee;

e  be aware of and oversee any major changes in employee benefit structures throughout the School;

e determine the policy for and scope of pension arrangements, service agreements, termination
payments and compensation commitments; and

*  provide a termly report to Council.

In determining appropriate salaries, the Trustees have regard to the following:

o  DfES teachers’ pay scales (Teachers pay and allowances for the maintained sector are used as the
baseline for teachers’ salaries and then subject to a cumulative percentage increase and a flat rate St
Swithun’s allowance)

e  Local Government and other local employee pay rates in order to benchmark support staff salaries
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Remuneration policy {continued)

e The independent schools’ benchmarking surveys provided by organisations such as HaysMacintyre
and Baines Cutler. ‘

The senior management of the school, deemed as those on the leadership scale and as listed in full on page 2,
are remunerated in accordance with the remuneration policy.

Teaching staff below the leadership scale progress through a number of main scale salary points (6 for teachers)
and are then eligible for additional appraisal based increases to their main salary. Support staff enjoy a cost of
living increase annually and could be awarded up to three discretionary pay scale increments.

The Nomination & Remuneration Committee determines any additional cost of living inflation increase, which
is applied to all staff, once approved by Council.

The Nomination & Remuneration Committee scrutinise and determine the Headmistress’s recommendations on
individual senior staff salaries for those on the leadership scale annually. Such decisions are taken with regard
to individual and coliective performance and the benchmarks provided by the Baines Cutler staff remuneration
survey.

Group Structure and Relationships

St Swithun’s has a wholly owned non-charity subsidiary, St Swithun’s School Letting Company Limited, whose
activities and trading performance is explained in the financial statements.

On 5 May 2009 the school registered a subsidiary charity — St. Swithun’s School Bursary Fund. Once commenced,
this subsidiary fund will be held on trust by the school for the provision of bursaries at the school, and will
manage capital and income for this purpose. There were no transactions during 2022. The assets of the Bursary
Fund are £1,359K as at 31 July 2022, which are held as an endowment fund to provide interest to fund future
bursaries. The Bramston Bursary Foundation (BBF) has assets of £356K. Both funds are currently held in
restricted funds within the Group.

Risk Management

The School’s detailed risk management procedures were established in January 2002 and the risk management
ledger, which outlines all known major risks to the school and states the action being taken to alleviate them,
was introduced. The Council sub committees have delegated responsibility for reviewing risks on a rolling annual
basis.

Most risks are on-going and as such have been discussed and appropriate measures or policies are in place to
alleviate them, either through reducing the likelihood of an occurrence or by reducing the impact in the event
of a risk materialising. Monitoring of risk and the appropriate amendment of policies and procedures form part
of the continuous management of the School.

Specific areas of risk are subject to additional oversight: Standing Committee maintains oversight of governance
and financial risk; Nomination & Remuneration Committee monitors succession planning; Education Committee
reviews academic risks; the Bursary, Fundraising & Public benefit Committee reviews delivery of Public benefit.
Dr Heather Mycock oversees health & safety issues and Mrs Julia Eager oversees child safety and safeguarding.

The ledger is updated at least annually to indicate additionaf actions taken to reduce risk and also to identify
areas where changes in legislation, personnel or levels of expertise have altered either the likelihood or potential
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Risk Management (continued)

impact of an event. During 2018 the school’s data protection measures were audited. An external health and
safety audit is conducted annually.

The following issues are viewed as giving rise to additional risks:

Political landscape: Council will continue to monitor government policy as it relates to independent
schools and the sector’s response. In particular changes in charity taxation policy could have a
substantial impact.

Financial: the economic climate which is under substantial pressure due to the impact of the Covid-
19 pandemic, the global economic situation and the war in Ukraine places an increasing financial
strain on some parents and the school. The volatility of the energy market caused a strategic shock
to the school’s finances. The level of long term fee debtors remains reasonably steady, but
affordability is recognised as a key risk. For Sep 22 the fees have increased by 5.0% for senior
boarding, 4.0% senior day, 5.5% senior prep 4.0% for Yr 3 and only 2.0% for KS1.

H&S and Safeguarding: The increased emphasis placed by ISI on governors’ responsibility and the
ability to provide evidence that those responsibilities, particularly in regards to child protection and
health and safety, are being properly discharged, are areas for maintained vigilance. These are areas
for ongoing engagement and maintained awareness. Governors must be able to demonstrate to ISl
that they are aware of the issues and that they have discharged their responsibilities. To that end
H&S and CP are now early agenda items at full Council meetings and key policies are reviewed
annually. Council established a Covid-19 Working Group to oversee the school’s management of the
coronavirus outhreak

Financial effect of significant events in the year

The ongoing impact of the Covid-19 pandemic has been an evident and enduring risk . This has'had a significant
impact on school operations and the financial position of the school has been affected by changes to working
practises and expectations of some parents. The impact of Covid continues to be monitored by the school senior
management teams with Council oversight.

The Council has again examined the principle areas of the school’s operations, identifying new risks and re-
assessing those already highlighted. The Council is satisfied that all known risks are currentily managed or have
systems in piace to mitigate them. The key controls used by the Council include:

Formal agendas and minutes for all Council and committee meetings;

Detailed Terms of Reference for all committees;

Comprehensive strategic budgetary and financial planning and management accounting;

Formal written policies and procedures, including on health and safety and child protection issues;
Established organisational and reporting structures;

Regular review and approval of key policies;

Crisis response procedures (updated July 2012 and reviewed annually);

External audit reports and 151 Inspection reports { most recently 2019).
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Section 172(1) Report incorporating Statements of Employee and Stakeholder engagement

The governors of the school, as directors of the company, must act in the way they consider, in good faith, would
be most likely to promote the success of the company for the benefit of its members as a whole and in doing so
have regard to:

a)
b)
c)
d)
e)
f)

The likely consequences of any decision in the long run

The interests of the company’s employees

The need to foster the company’s business relationships

The impact of the company’s operations on the community and the environment B

The desirability of the company maintaining a reputation for high standards of business conduct
The need to act fairly

For charitable companies with purposes that are not aimed to benefit the members, the Board has to actin a
way that promotes the success of the wider charitable purposes. This will incorporate the desire to meet the
requirements of all stakeholders, being beneficiaries, both pupils and the wider community, staff, donors and
fee payers and suppliers.

The Governors of St Swithun’s School (Winchester) consider that they have acted in a way that is most likely to
promote the success of the charitable purpose, as set out in aims and objectives on page 5, in the following way:

a)

b)

The likely consequences of any decision in the long run: -

- The Governors have considered the long-term sustainability of the school’s operations, as set out in
the Going Concern section of the Strategic Report on page 9.

- Council sets and approves strategic direction and policy, meets three times each year and additionally
as required. Council monitors the work of the school’s management teams through its committees and
through visits to the school. Standing Committee reviews the School’s financial plans on a termly basis
by monitoring income and expenditure against forecasts within the context of the annual budget and a
rolling 10-year financial plan. Capital expenditure plans and cash flow requirements are also closely
reviewed, particularly in the light of the School’s -borrowing commitments and repayment
requirements.

- Risk management is incorporated into all of the school’s operations and robust risk management
procedures are well established. The most significant risks are discussed at each relevant Council sub-
committee. Further details are contained in page 19.

- The Governors review and endorse ali policies to ensure consistent long term regulatory compliance.

The interests of the company’s employees, incorporating Statement of engagement with employees:

- Authoritative and frequent communication with staff is essential. Staff are kept informed about
staffing, financial and strategic issues affecting them and the school through a termly update and then
weekly staff meetings.

- Full details of the employment policy are contained on page 16.

- The Governors receive regular reports on staff matters through the Headmistress’ termly report. All
Governors conduct visits to school where opportunity is made for direct staff engagement.
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Section 172(1) Report incorporating Statements of Employee and Stakeholder engagement (continued)

d)

- All staff were involved in the early stages of the strategic plan development, and all are updated on
the plan and priorities at the start of each academic year.

- Meaningful engagement is encouraged through the staff forum where employees across all
departments discuss and make recommendations direct to senior management. A staff survey in 2020
reported high levels of satisfaction and the school plans to repeat this process. . A diverse programme
of well-being activities is available to all staff.

- The Company has complied with the UK’s Equality Act 2010 Regulations 2017 that require the
publication of information on the gender pay gap for UK employees annually. The 2021 report is

- available on the website.

The need to foster the company’s relationships with stakeholders, incorporating Statement of
company’s business relationships:

- The charity's beneficiaries and donors are the focus of all the school’s operations.

- A fair and consistent selection policy ensures a diverse and thriving student body thatis fully supported
throughout their education from nursery to external examinations results, enabling admission to all
universities and preparing pupils for later life beyond the school gates.

- Strong recruitment of the best teachers and valuing of staff supports the stability and high standard
of education.

- A fair policy of bursary awards, consistently applied, support families who may not otherwise be able
to access education at the school.

- The parent contract forms the basis of the relationship with fee payers. This is reviewed regularly to
ensure best practice and then applied fairly and consistently. Parental engagement is maintained
through weekly correspondence and termly publications.

- All suppliers are treated fairly and promptly with business terms adhered to. Local and non-corporate
supplies are reimbursed on request. The Company complies with the UK’s Payment Practices
Regulations that require the publication of information on the supplier terms offered and average
payment statistics. The August 2022 calculation has been uploaded to the Government portal and is
available to review.

- Council receives regular reports and updates in fundraising regulations and guidance through the
Bursary, Fundraising and Public Benefit Committee. The school does not engage with any external
third party fundraisers.

The impact of the company’s operations on the community and the environment:
- Council supports the school to undertake a full provision of community and partnership activity
- Full details are contained in page 7.

- The Company has completed the Energy Savings Opportunity Scheme (ESOS) reporting requirements
phases 1 and 2, and reports under the Streamlined Energy and Carbon Reporting (SECR) on page 23.
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Section 172(1) Report incorporating Statements of Employee and Stakeholder engagement (continued)

e)

The desirability of the company maintaining a reputation for high standards of business conduct:

- The Company’s Bribery Policy, that has been approved by Council, sets out the responsibilities of staff
to report any incidents or suspicion of fraud, bribery or corruption arising in the course of their work
and to cooperate fully with related investigations. The School takes a zero tolerance approach towards
fraud, bribery and corruption. The Whistle blowing policy supports staff in this approach.

The need to act fairly:

- All governors and senior staff complete an annual Conflict of interest declaration. There have been
no reported incidents of unacceptable relationships.

Streamlined Energy and Carbon Reporting (SECR) Disclosure

(a)

(b)

Emissions Summary

The SECR disclosure presents our carbon footprint within the United Kingdom across Scope 1, 2 and to
some extent scope 3 emissions, an appropriate intensity metric, the total energy use of electricity, gas
and transport fuel and an energy efficiency actions summary taken during the relevant financial year.

Year to 31July  Year to 31 July

2022 2021
Energy consumption used to calculate emissions (kwh) 5,973,154 6,215,248
Emissions from combustion of gas (Scope 1) tCOze 794 844
Emissions from combustion of fuel for transport purposes 5 4
{Scope 1) tCOze
Emissions from business travel in rental cars or employee- 31 19
owned vehicles where company is responsible for purchasing
the fuel (Scope 3) tCOze
Emissions from purchased electricity (Scope 2, location-based) 285 352
tCO2e
Total gross tCOze based on above 1,115 1,19
Intensity ratio (tCOe/total square metres (m?)) 0.046686 0.051199

Energy Efficiency Action Summary — Year to 31% July 2022

St. Swithun's School continues to seek to achieve direct savings in energy and associated carbon
emissions, through operational and technological improvements. Significant plans for major
investment had to be put on hold as the school recovered from the financial impact of the Covid19
pandemic. A focus on sustainability has commenced in 2022-2023. This includes both short-term
measures involving employee and pupil engagement in energy saving initiatives, a programme of
phased replacement of inefficient boilers plus detailed planning for long-term capital projects including
solar panel installation and window enhancement.
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Streamlined Energy and Carbon Reporting (SECR) Disclosure (continued)

SECR Methodology notes

Reporting Period 1% August 2021 - 31 July 2022

Boundary (consolidation approach) Operational approach

Alignment with financial reporting SECR disclosure has been prepared in line with St. Swithun’s
School’s annual accounts made up to 31% July 2022

Reporting method GHG Emissions reporting are in line with the Greenhouse Gas (GHG)
Protocol Corporate Accounting and Reporting Standard

Emissions factor & Conversion DEFRA, 2022 for all emissions and conversion factors

factor source https://www.gov.uk/covernment/publications/ereenhouse-gas-
reporting-conversion-tactors-2022

Calculation method Activity Data x Emission Factor = GHG emissions
Activity Data x Conversion Factor = kWh consumption

Rounding The results in the table are expressed in tons COze and may not add
up precisely to the totals due to rounding.

Other relevant information on The report contains an estimated electricity consumption, estimation

calculation method: average value from past 3 months. The estimated electricity

consumption is less than 1% of the total energy consumption.
Diesel and petrol split were not available from company mileage.
Split was made using VEH1103 statistics
bttps://www.gov.uk/government/statistical-data-sets/vehicle-
licensing-statistics-data-tables
Reason for the intensity metric St. Swithun's School is an independent day, weekiy and full-boarding
choice school therefore following the recommendations of the legislation
the chosen intensity metric is total square meters, expressing the
school’s annual emissions in relation to this quantifiable factor.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF MEMBERS OF THE COUNCIL

The Council Members (who are also directors of St Swithun’s School (Winchester) for the purposes of company
law) are responsible for preparing the Council Report and the financial statements in accordance with applicable
law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).
Company law requires the Council Members to prepare financial statements for each financial year, which give
a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the charitable company and the group and of the incoming resources
and application of resources, including the income and expenditure, of the charitable group for that period. In
preparing those financial statements, the members of the Councit are required to:-

U select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

. observe the methods and principles in the Charities SORP;

) make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

. state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed subject to any material
departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and

. prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume

that the charitable company will continue in business.

The members of the Council are responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose with
reasonable accuracy at any time the financia! position of the charitable company and to enable them to ensure
the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. The members of the Council are also responsible
for safeguarding the assets of the charitable company and the group and hence for taking reasonable steps for
the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

INFORMATION PROVIDED TO THE AUDITOR

The Members of the Council who were in office on the date of approval of these financial statements have
confirmed, as far as they are aware, that there is no relevant audit information of which the auditor is unaware.
Each of the Members has confirmed that they have taken all of the steps that they ought to have taken as
directors in order to make themselves aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the auditor
is aware of that information.

Auditor
Crowe U.K. LLP offer themselves for reappointment as auditor in accordance with the Companies Act 2006.

The Report of the Council and the Strategic Report were approved on behalf of the Council.

W)’

A. McCLure
Chair

10 November 2022
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St Swithun's School (Winchester) (a company limited by guarantee)
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF ST SWITHUN’S SCHOOL (WINCHESTER)

Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members of St Swithun’s School (Winchester)
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of St Swithun's School ‘the charitable company’ and its subsidiary ‘the group’ for the
year ended 31 July 2022 which comprise the Consolidated Statement of Financial Activities, Consolidated and Company Balance
Sheets, Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows and notes to the financial statements, including significant accounting policies. The
financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting
Standards, including Financial Reporting Standard 102 The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of
treland (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).

In our opinion the financial statements:

* give a true and fair view of the state of the group’s and the charitable company’s affairs as at 31 July 2022 and of the group’s
income and expenditure, for the year then ended;

e have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice; and
» have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.
Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK}) and applicable law. Qur
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements section of our report. We are independent of the group in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant
to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC’s Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the trustee's use of the going concern basis of accounting in the
preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that,
individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the charitable company's or the group’s ability to continue as a going
concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the trustees with respect to going concern are described in the relevant sections of
this report.

Other information

The trustees are responsible for the other information contained within the annual report. The other information comprises the
information included in the annual report, other than the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. Our opinion on
the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report,
we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material
misstatements, we are required to determine whether this gives rise to a material misstatement in the financial statements
themselves. if, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.
Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion based on the work undertaken in the course of our audit

s the information given in the trustees’ report, which includes the directors’ report and the strategic report prepared for the
purposes of company law, for the financial year for which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the
financial statements; and

s the strategic report and the directors’ report included within the trustees’ report have been prepared in accordance with
applicable legal requirements.
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St Swithun's School (Winchester) (a company limited by guarantee)
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF ST SWITHUN’S SCHOOL (WINCHESTER)

Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members of St Swithun’s School (Winchester) (continued)

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

In light of the knowledge and understanding of the group and charitable company and their environment obtained in the course
of the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the strategic report or the directors’ report included within the
trustees’ report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report
to you if, in our opinion:

e adequate and proper accounting records have not been kept; or

e the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or

e certain disclosures of trustees' remuneration specified by law are not made; or

e we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit

Responsibilities of trustees

As explained more fully in the trustees’ responsibilities statement set out on page 25, the trustees {who are also the directors of
the charitable company for the purposes of company law) are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for

being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the trustees determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

(n preparing the financial statements, the trustees are responsible for assessing the charitable company’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the trustees either intend to liquidate the charitable company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is
a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 1SAs (UK) will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.

Details of the extent to which the audit was considered capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud and non-compliance
with laws and regulations are set out below.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the tinancial statements is located on the Financial Reporting Councll's
website at: www frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor’s report.

Extent to which the audit was considered capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We identified and assessed the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements from irregularities, whether due to fraud or error, and discussed these between

" our audit team members. We then designed and performed audit procedures responsive to those risks, including obtaining audit
evidence sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

We obtained an understanding of the legal and regulatory frameworks within which the charitable company and group operates,
focusing on those laws and regulations that have a direct effect on the determination of material amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The laws and regulations we considered in this context were the Companies Act 2006, the Charities Act 2011,
taxation legislation, together with the Charities SORP (FRS 102). We assessed the required compliance with these laws and
regulations as part of our audit procedures on the related financial statement items.

In addition, we considered provisions of other laws and regulations that do not have a direct effect on the financial statements
but compliance with which might be fundamental to the charitable company’s and the group’s ability to operate or to avoid a
material penalty. We also considered the opportunities and incentives that may exist within the charitable company and the group
for fraud. The laws and regulations we considered in this context for the UK operations were The Education (Independent School
Standards) Regulations 2014, Data Protection Regulation (GDPR), Health and safety legislation and employment legislation.
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St Swithun's School (Winchester) (a company limited by guarantee)
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF ST SWITHUN’S SCHOOL (WINCHESTER)

Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members of St Swithun’s School (Winchester) (continued)

Extent to which the audit was considered capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud (continued)

Auditing standards limit the required audit procedures to identify non-compliance with these laws and regulations to enquiry of
the Trustees and other management and inspection of regulatory and legal correspondence, if any.

We identified the greatest risk of material impact on the financial statements from irregularities, including fraud, to be within the
timing of recognition of donations income and other ancillary income, and the override of controls by management. Our audit
procedures to respond to these risks included enquiries of management and the Standing Committee about their own
identification and assessment of the risks of irregularities, sample testing on the posting of journals, reviewing accounting
estimates for biases, reviewing regulatory correspondence with the Charity Commission, Independent Schools Inspectorate,
Ofsted and reading minutes of meetings of those charged with governance.

Owing to the inherent limitations of an audit, there is an unavoidable risk that we may not have detected some material
misstatements in the financial statements, even though we have properly planned and performed our audit in accordance with
auditing standards. For example, the further removed non-compliance with laws and regulations {irregularities) is from the events
and transactions reflected in the financial statements, the less likely the inherently limited procedures required by auditing
standards would identify it. In addition, as with any audit, there remained a higher risk of non-detection of irregularities, as these
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal controls. We are not
responsible for preventing non-compliance and cannot be expected to detect non-compliance with all laws and regulations.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the charitable company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the charitable company’s members those
matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law,
we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the charitable company and the charitable company’s members
as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Nicola May
Senior Statutory Auditor
For and on behalf of

Crowe UK. LLP
Statutory Auditor

London
Date: 22 November 2022
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St Swithun's School (Winchester) (a company limited by guarantee)
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES (incorporating an income and expenditure account)

for the year ended 31 July 2022

School
Note 2022
£
Iincome and endowments from
Donations -
Charitable activities
.- .Schoolfees 1 . . - 15,565,560
- Ancillary trading 630,010
income 3
Trading turnover 2 285,848
Investment income 3,193
Other income 3 -
Total Incoming 16,484,611
Resources
Expenditure on
Charitable activities 15,821,938
Raising funds 4 175,519
Other- Finance costs 4 121,584
Total Resources 16,119,041
Expended 4
Gains / (losses) on -
investments
NET INCOME FOR THE 365,570
YEAR
Transfer of funds 11 80,085
Pension scheme -
actuarial losses 18
NET MOVEMENT IN 445,655
FUNDS
Balance brought forward 30,255,470
Balance carried forward 30,701,125

Endowment
Fund

2022

£

1,128

1,128

2,000

2,000

(3,614)

(4,486)

(4,486)

70,705

66,219

All of the school’s activities relate to continuing operations.
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Restricted
funds Total Total
2022 2022 2021

£ £ £
262,535 262,535 1,571,584
-~ 15,565,560 13,901,455
- 630,010 675,869
- 285,848 150,207
42,309 46,630 43,816
- 361,499
304,844 16,790,583 16,704,430
219,285 16,043,223 15,000,345
- 175,519 83,351
- 121,584 183,069
219,285 16,340,326 15,266,765
14,572 10,958 165,729
100,131 461,215 1,603,394
(80,085) - -
20,046 461,215 1,603,394
2,172,269 32,498,444 30,895,050
2,192,315 32,959,659 32,498,444
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St Swithun's School (Winchester) (a company limited by guarantee)

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
as at 31 July 2022

Fixed assets
Tangible assets
Investments

Current assets

Debtors

Cash at bank and in hand

Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year

NET ASSETS

Unrestricted funds
Restricted funds

Endowment fund

TOTAL FUNDS

Note

10

12

11

11

2022 2021
£ £
31,648,226 32,076,688
2,168,863 1,407,905
33,817,089 33,484,593
489,586 499,148
5,920,925 6,070,938
6,410,511 6,570,086
(3,069,199) (3,210,068)
3,341,312 3,360,018
37,158,401 36,844,611

(4,198,742) (4,346,167))
32,959,659 32,498,444
30,701,125 30,255,470
2,192,315 2,172,269
66,219 70,705
32,959,659 32,498,444

The surplus for the financial year deait with in the financial statements of the parent company was £342,119 (2021 surplus of

£1,514,455).

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the Council on 10 November 2022

MVV\\ J . M%A@ A McClure
MJQM A-L Peters

Members of the Council

The accompanying accounting policies and notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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St Swithun's School (Winchester) (a company limited by guarantee)

BALANCE SHEET
as at 31 July 2022

Fixed assets
Tangible assets
Investments

Current assets

Debtors

Cash at bank and in hand

Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year

NET ASSETS

Unrestricted funds
Restricted funds

Endowment fund

TOTAL FUNDS

Note

10

11

11

2022 2021
£ £
30,949,721 31,376,908
2,168,864 1,407,906
33,118,585 32,784,814
471,679 521,196
5,826,733 5,965,930
6,298,412 6,487,126
(2,988,134) (3,156,867)
3,310,278 3,330,259
36,428,863 36,115,073
(4,198,742) (4,346,167)
32,230,121 31,768,906
29,971,587 29,525,932
2,192,315 2,172,269
66,219 70,705
32,230,121 31,768,906

Tmtatements were approved and authorised for issue by the Council on 10 November 2022

) NG e
AP

Members of the Council

The accompanying accounting policies and notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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St Swithun's School (Winchester) (a company limited by guarantee)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

for the year ended 31 July 2022

Net cash inflow from operations

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of tangible fixed assets

Assets in the course of construction

Purchase of fixed asset investment

Proceeds from sale of current asset investments
Interest from investments

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Repayments of borrowing
New loan finance after restructure

Net cash provided by financing activities

Change in cash and cash equivalents in the reporting period

" Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the reporting period

32

Note 2022 2021
£ £

14 1,590,711 2,417,352
(319,387) (187,171)
(315,549) (1,234,297)

(750,000) -

46,630 43,816

(1,338,306) (1,377,652)

(402,418) (394,489)
(402,418) (394,489)

{150,013) 645,211

6,070,938 5,425,727

5,920,925 6,070,938
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St Swithun's School (Winchester) (a company limited by guarantee)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
for the year ended 31 July 2022

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
PUBLIC BENEFIT ENTITY

The School is a public benefit entity registered as a charity in England and Wales and a company limited by guarantee. It was
incorporated on 08 July 1910 (company number 00110692) and registered as a charity with the Charities Commission charity
number 307335. '

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and
Republic of Ireland (FRS102), the Companies Act 2006 and the Statement of Recommended Practice applicable to charities
preparing their accounts in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS102)
- effective 1 January 2015.

The functional currency of the School is considered to be GBP because that is the currency of the primary economic environment
in which the school operates.

The accounts are drawn up on the historic cost basis of accounting, as modified by the revaluation of investments and pension
liabilities.

GOING CONCERN

The Council has considered several factors when forming their conclusion as to the use of the going concern basis for the
preparation of these financial statements including a review of the updated forecasts to 31 July 2024 and a consideration of the
key risks, including the impact of external economic factors including the energy market volatility, that could negatively impact
the school and working capital requirements.

The forecast surpluses for 2022-23 and 2023-24 have been affected by the global energy market crisis, which has seen an
unexpected 600% rise in energy costs. This sits alongside a significant rise in national inflation and strong upward pressure on
staff salaries; all pressures by which the school is equally affected.

All these factors have inevitably caused significant increases in the operating cost base of the school. However, the Council has
taken measures which, combined with the use of strategic reserves, will alleviate this pressure whilst maintaining the level of
commitment to the education of the girls and developing the offer to meet the expectations of parents now and in the future.

Sustaining and increasing pupil numbers remains a key risk, which is assessed on an ongoing basis. The school has made a cautious
start to the school year with 700 pupils. Thisis in line with the budgeted roll set in July 2022. Fee income for the first term of the
22/23 school year has been strong with an indication that payment of fees will be consistent with previous years. Early indications
are strong for the September 2023 intake.

At the year-end, the school had surplus free reserves of £2,593,828. This comprises £5,081,254 unrestricted cash plus £489,586
working capital less net creditors of £2,977,012.

Council reviews the School’s financial plans on a termly basis by monitoring income and expenditure against forecasts within the
context of the annual budget and a rolling 10-year financial plan. Cash flows are also closely reviewed, particufarly in the light of
the School’s borrowing commitments and repayment requirements. Financial sensitivity analysis is incorporated into Council
information, centred on key assumptions (roll, fees, and staff costs).

Council reviews all known major risks to the school and states the action being taken to alleviate them on a rolling annual basis.
The key risks to which the school is subject are highlighted in the strategic report. The school’s strategic development plan
remains dynamic and will be further reviewed once the impact of the ongoing energy market volatility is better known. [t is not
anticipated that this will change the underpinning aims, vision or ethos of the school.
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St Swithun's School (Winchester) (a company limited by guarantee)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
for the year ended 31 July 2022

GOING CONCERN (continued)

Having regard to all the above, the Governors have a reasonable expectation that the School has adequate resources to continue
its activities for the foreseeable future and consider that there are no material uncertainties over the school’s financial viability.
Accordingly, they continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements as outlined in the Statement of
Members Responsibilities on page 25.

GROUP ACCOUNTS

These financial statements consolidate the results of the charity and its wholly-owned subsidiary St Swithun’s School Letting
Company Limited (company number 01931472) on a line by line basis. No separate SOFA has been presented for the Charity
alone, as permitted by Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006. The charity has taken advantage of the exemption available to a
qualifying entity in FRS102 from the requirement to present a charity only Cash Flow Statement with the consolidated financial
statements.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the accounting policies, Trustees are required to make judgement, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying value of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and underlying assumptions
are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affected current and future periods.

The key estimates and judgements which impact the financial statements are; Assumptions adopted by management and use by
the actuary to calculate the pension liability, and assessments of remaining useful fife and impairments of assets, and assessment
of the bad debt provision.

In the view of the trustees, no assumptions concerning the future or estimation uncertainty affecting assets or liabilities at the
balance sheet date are likely to result in a material adjustment to their carrying value in the next financial year.

The following accounting policies have been applied consistently in dealing with items which are considered material in relation
of the school’s financial statements.

FEES RECEIVABLE AND SIMILAR INCOME
Fees receivable and charges for services and use of the premises, iess any scholarships, bursaries or other discounts granted by

the school against those fees, but including contributions received from restricted funds, are accounted for in the period in which
the service is provided.

DONATIONS AND GRANTS

Donations and other voluntary incoming resources received which are subject to specific wishes of the donors are carried to
relevant restricted funds, as and when entitlement arises which can be reliably quantified and benefit is probable.
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St Swithun's School (Winchester) (a company limited by guarantee)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
for the year ended 31 July 2022

EXPENDITURE

Expenditure is accrued as soon as a liability is considered probable, discounted to present value for longer-term liabilities.
Expenditure is allocated to expense headings either on a direct cost basis, or apportioned on a consistent basis. The irrecoverable
element of VAT is included with the item of expense to which it relates.

Governance costs comprise the costs of running the charity, including strategic planning for its future development, also external
audit, any legal advice for the Council and all costs of complying with constitutional and statutory requirements.

FIXED ASSETS

Fixed assets are included in these financial statements at their original cost less depreciation. All items costing in excess of £1,000
are capitalised and depreciated according to the policy below. This is an uplift from the previous policy of £500, although key
individual items which fall under the higher cost may still be capitalised.

All fixed assets are used in direct furtherance of the school’s objectives.
DEPRECIATION

Depreciation is provided on all tangible fixed assets with the exception of land at rates calculated to write off the costs less
estimated residual value on each asset, by equal annual instalments, over their expected useful lives which are considered to be:

Freehold land - nil
Freehold buildings - SO years
Furniture, fittings and equipment - 4-5 years
Assets in the course of construction - nil
PENSIONS

Retirement benefits to employees of the school are provided through three pension schemes, two defined benefit and one defined
contribution. The pension costs charged in the Statement of Financial Activities are determined as follows:

Teachers are auto-enrolled in the Teachers’ Pension Scheme, which is a multi-employer pension scheme. Teachers may also
voluntarily opt-out and join the defined contribution scheme. It is not possible to identify the school’s share of the underlying
assets and liabilities of the Teachers’ Pension Scheme on a consistent and reasonable basis and therefore, as required by FRS102,
accounts for the scheme as if it were a defined contribution scheme. The school’s contributions, which are in accordance with
the recommendations of the Government Actuary, are charged in the period in which the salaries to which they relate are payable.

Non-teaching members of staff appointed before 31 December 2000 were offered membership of a defined benefit scheme. The
assets of this scheme are held separately from those of the school, being invested with insurance companies. The pension costs
for that scheme represent the contribution due by the school based on the charges calculated by the Scheme’s actuaries, so as to
ensure that the regular pension costs represent a substantially level percentage of the current and expected future pensionable
payroll. The scheme closed to future accrual on 31 March 2007. Remaining staff are now deferred members of the scheme and
full members of the defined contribution scheme.

The defined benefits scheme is being accounted for under FRS102, with any annually calculated notional deficit on the funding of
the scheme shown in the accounts as a pension reserve, which is deducted from Unrestricted Funds in the balance sheet. Any
notional surplus is not recognised, but carried at £nil value. The Council believes that the scheme currently meets statutory funding
requirements. The Council note that the calculated notional surplus or deficit calculated under FRS102 can vary greatly from year
to year depending on the assumptions made at the year end. Full details are contained in note 18.

All support staff and teachers who opt out of Teachers’ Pension Scheme are enrolled in a defined contribution scheme. This is a
group personal pension plan with Legal & General. Employer’s pensions costs are charged in the period in which the salaries to
which they relate are payable.
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St Swithun's School (Winchester) (a company limited by guarantee)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
for the year ended 31 July 2022

COMPOSITION FEES

Amounts received under the school’s Composition Fees contracts for education not yet utilised to settle school fees are recorded
as deferred income and allocated as current liabilities where the education will be provided within 12 months from the reporting
date and as long-term liabilities where the education will be provided in subsequent years.

DEPOSITS

The Governors have reviewed the contract terms under which Pupil fee deposits are held by the school. Although under normal
circumstances these will be repaid over future years when the pupils complete their education at the school, pupils can leave at
earlier dates. The school does not therefore have an unconditional right to retain the individual deposits for at least 12 months
after the balance sheet date and, in line with the requirements in FRS 102, the balance of the deposits held at 31 July 2022 and at
2021 have been included within current liabilities. '

INVESTMENTS AND INVESTMENT INCOME

Long term investments are classified as fixed assets. Short term investments are classified as current assets.

Investments listed on a recognised stock exchange are valued at the lower of cost and mid-market value at the balance sheet date.
A surplus or deficit on revaluation is taken to the Statement of Financial Activities. Unlisted investments are stated at cost.

UK Government gilts are classified as either fixed or current assets depending on when they are due to mature.

Provision is made for any impairment in the value of fixed asset investments. Investments in subsidiaries are valued at cost less
provision for impairment.

Investment income from bank balances and fixed interest securities is accounted for on an accruals basis.

FUNDS

Unrestricted funds are incoming resources receivable or generated for the objects of the charity without further specified purposes
and are available as general funds.

Restricted funds are funds subject to specific conditions imposed by donors. The purpose and use of the restricted funds are set
out in the notes to the financial statements. Amounts unspent at the year-end are carried forward in the balance sheet. Details
of these funds are set out in note 11.

OPERATING LEASES

Rentals under operating leases are charged on a straight-line basis over the lease term, even if the payments are not made on
such a basis. Benefits received and receivable as an incentive to sign an operating lease are similarly spread on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Basic financial instruments are initially recognised at transaction value and subsequently measured at amortised with the
exception of investments, which are held at fair value. Financial assets held at amortised cost comprise cash at bank and in hand,
together with trade and other debtors. A specific provision is made for debts for which recoverability is in doubt. Cash at bank
and in hand is defined as all cash held in instant access bank accounts and used as working capital. Financial liabilities held at
amortised cost comprise all creditors except social security and other taxes and provisions. Assets and liabilities held in foreign
currency are translated to GBP at the balance sheet date at an appropriate year-end exchange rate. In accordance with FRS102,
financial instruments now exclude fees in advance, as they are settled by provision of education, not monetary consideration.

Net financial assets measured at fair value for the year-end amounted to £2,168,865 in investments (2021 £1,470,906).
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St Swithun's School (Winchester) (a company limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 July 2022

1 SCHOOL EARNINGS

The school fees earnings comprised

Gross fees

Scholarships

Bursaries

Staff and sibling discount

Add back bursaries funded by Bramston Bursary Appeal

Bursaries, scholarships and other awards were paid to 138 pupils (2021: 133).
Within this means tested bursaries were paid to 55 pupils (2020:58 pupils).

2 TRADING SUBSIDIARY

2022
£

17,235,502
(290,263)

(1,348,672)
(200,823)

15,395,744

169,816

15,565,560

2021
£

15,600,317
(296,727)

(1,310,793)
(234,224)

13,758,573

142,882

13,901,455

The school holds the only share in one trading company, St Swithun’s School Letting Company Limited which utilises
school assets for trading purposes. Summarised trading results for the year ended 31 July 2022 are as below. Two

members from the Council have been appointed as directors of the subsidiary.

Income

From the school
External trading income
investment income

Expenditure

To the school
Other costs

Profit before tax

2022 2021

£ £
23,520 23,520
285,848 150,207
63 7
309,431 173,734
11,029 5,672
166,815 79,123
177,844 84,795
131,587 88,939

The Chairman, the Treasurer and the Bursar have received no remuneration, dividend or any other form of reward or

benefit from the trading subsidiary.

The trading subsidiary makes an annual distribution of its taxable profits to the school.

37

Company Number 00110692

Charity Number 307335




St Swithun's School (Winchester) (a company limited by guarantee)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 July 2022

3 (a) ANCILLIARY TRADING INCOME

2022 2021
£ £
Extra subjects, trips and travel 438,212 535,409
Registration fees and deposits forfeit . 139,420 101,311
Sundry income 52,378 39,149
630,010 675,869
3 (b) OTHER INCOME
2022 2021 £
£
Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme recovery - 318,599
Grant income - 42,900
4 ANALYSIS OF EXPENDITURE
(a) Total expenditure
Staff Other 2022 2021
costs costs Depreciation Total Total
£ £ £ £ £
Raising funds 90,604 83,640 1,275 175,519 83,351
Financing costs - 121,584 - 121,584 183,069
90,604 205,224 1,275 297,103 266,420
Charitable activities
Teaching costs 7,396,791 1,276,196 186,159 8,859,146 8,590,904
Welfare costs 1,253,489 565,158 - 1,818,647 1,587,321
Premises costs 680,152 1,609,827 . 875,964 3,165,943 2,775,413
Support costs and governance 1,712,579 486,908 - 2,199,487 2,046,707
11,043,011 3,938,089 1,062,123 16,043,223 15,000,345
11,133,615 4,143,313 1,063,398 16,340,326 15,266,765
{b) Governance costs of the charity included in support costs 2022 2021
£ £
Remuneration paid to current auditor for external audit services 23,800 22,700
Costs of ISl inspection 6,974 6,619
Reimbursement of personal expenses to Governors — travel 472 = 290
31,246 29,609
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 July 2022

4

ANALYSIS OF EXPENDITURE (continued)

No members of Council received any remuneration or other benefits from the school or from any connected body.
Two member of the Council received reimbursement of expenses connected with attending Council meetings and
training. The total reimbursed for the year was £472 (2021: one member of the Council received a total of £290).

The school provides liability insurance to the Members of the Council as part of the school’s insurance policy.

{c) Net incoming resources are stated after charging:

2022

£

Audit fees 34,071
Non-audit fees 1,230
Direct taxation services 1,025
Operating lease charges 73,800
Depreciation , 1,063,398

2021

£

32,780
1,230
1,025
59,767
1,029,086

All fees for audit services in 2022 and 2021 are payable to Crowe U.K. LLP and are stated inclusive of non-recoverable

VAT.

STAFF COSTS
2022 2021
£ £
Salaries and wages 7,999,421 7,858,344
Social security costs 799,122 759,796
Pension costs and superannuation 1,522,786 1,507,070
10,321,329 10,125,210
Other staff related costs 191,935 118,688
External contractors 620,351 521,570
11,133,615 10,765,468
Aggregate employee- benefits of key management personnel 1,116,747 1,129,713

The benefits figure includes the cost of employer national insurance.

During the year there were no termination payments made; (2021: four termination payments totalling £110,320.

There was £nil outstanding at the year-end (2021: £70,320 was outstanding at the year-end).

The average number of employees of the group during the year was as follows:
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for the year ended 31 July 2022

S STAFF COSTS (continued)
2022 2022 2021 2021
Number FTE Number FTE
Teaching staff 204 127 196 120
Support staff 123 77 132 81
327 204 328 201

Catering staff numbers are not included in the above calculations as they are not direct employees of the school.

The number of employees whose gross emoluments exceeded £60,000 was:

2022 2021
£60,001 - £70,000 2 1
£70,001 - £80,000 1 2
£80,001 - £90,000 2 3
£90,001 - £100,000 2 -

£150,001 - £160,000 - 1
£160,001 - £170,000

=
'

During the year contributions were made to Teachers’ Pensions defined benefit scheme on behalf of six higher paid
employees (2021: five employees) and to a defined contribution group personal pension scheme for two higher paid
employees (2021: two employees).

6 TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

Freehold Assets in the Furniture

land and course of fittings and

buildings construction equipment Total
THE GROUP £ £ £ £
Cost
At 1 August 2021 41,821,262 1,122,126 3,036,424 45,979,812
Additions 118,301 315,549 201,086 634,936
Transfers 1,226,962 {1,282,575) 55,613 -
Fixed assets written off ‘ - - (212,660) (212,660)
At 31 July 2022 43,166,525 155,100 3,080,463 46,402,088
Depreciation
At 1 August 2021 11,153,484 - 2,749,640 13,903,124
Provided in the year 875,964 - 187,434 1,063,398
Fixed assets written off - - (212,660) (212,660)
At 31 July 2022 12,029,448 - 2,724,414 14,753,862
Net book amount at 31 July 2022 31,137,077 155,100 356,049 31,648,226
Net book amount at 31 July 2021 30,667,778 1,122,126 286,784 32,076,688

The freehold land and buildings are insured by the school to the value of £70.8M
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6

TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS {continued)

THE COMPANY

Cost

At 1 August 2021
Additions

Transfers

Fixed assets written off

At 31 July 2022
Depreciation

At 1 August 2021
Provided in the year

Fixed assets written off

At 31 July 2022

Net book amount at 31 July 2022

Net book amount at 31 July 2021

FIXED ASSET INVESTMENTS

Market value as at 1 August 2021

Additions

Transfer to current asset investments
Increase / (decrease) in value of investments

Market value as at 31 July 2022
As represented by:

Listed investments (UK)
Unlisted investments

Freehold Assets in the
land and course of
buildings construction

£ £
40,622,140 1,122,126
118,301 315,549
1,226,962 (1,282,575)
41,967,403 155,100
10,652,867 -
875,964 -
11,528,831 -
30,438,572 155,100
29,969,273 1,122,126

The Group

2022 2021

£ £
1,407,905 1,242,176
750,000 -
10,958 165,729
2,168,863 1,407,905
2,168,863 1,407,905
2,168,863 1,407,905
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Furniture
fittings and
equipment Total
£ £
2,914,396 44,658,662
201,086 634,936
55,613 -
(212,660) (212,660)
2,958,435 45,080,938
2,628,887 13,281,754
186,159 1,062,123
(212,660) (212,660)
2,602,386 14,131,217
356,049 30,949,721
285,509 31,376,908
The Company
2022 2021
£ £
1,407,906 1,242,177
750,000 -
10,958 165,729
2,168,864 1,407,906
2,168,863 1,407,905
1 1
2,168,864 1,407,906
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7

FIXED ASSET INVESTMENTS (continued)

At 31 July 2022 the company held 100% of the allotted share capital of St Swithun’s School Letting Company Limited

incorporated in England and Wales (company number 0193147; registered office Alresford Road,

Winchester SO21 1HA), which is involved in the letting of facilities. The assets and liabilities of St Swithun’s School

Letting Company Limited are:

2022 2021
£ f
Tangible fixed assets - 1,275
Current assets 113,217 127,486
113,217 128,761
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year (82,182) (97,726)
31,035 31,035
Represented by:
Share capital 1 1
Profit and loss account 31,033 31,033
Capital redemption reserve 1 1
31,035 31,035

Details of St Swithun’s School Letting Company Limited’s profit and loss account are given in note 2.
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St Swithun's School (Winchester) (a company limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 July 2022

10

DEBTORS
The Group
2022 2021 2022
Amounts falling due within one year: £ £ £
Fee debtors 7,953 27,837 7,953
Prepayments and accrued income 481,633 471,311 447,343
Amounts owed by group undertaking - - 16,383
489,586 499,148 471,679
CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR
The Group
2022 2021 2022
£ £ £
Bank loan 332,833 332,833 332,833
Social security and other taxes 219,696 218,170 208,536
HP creditor 7,650 - 7,650
Other creditors and accruals 1,001,512 668,768 931,607
Pupil fee deposits 592,080 665,356 592,080
Deferred income (fees in advance and composition) 915,428 1,324,941 915,428
Amounts due to group undertakings - - -
3,069,199 3,210,068 2,988,134
As required by FRS102 all pupil deposits are shown as due within one year.
CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE AFTER MORE THAN ONE YEAR
(a) Analysis of creditor
The Group
2022 2021 2022
£ £ £
Bank loans 3,958,096 4,238,930 3,958,096
Deferred income (composition fees) 218,921 107,237 218,921
HP creditor 21,725 - 21,725
4,198,742 4,346,167 4,198,742

The bank loans are secured on the freehold property of the school.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 July 2022

10 CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE AFTER MORE THAN ONE YEAR (continued)

(b) BANK LOANS

Due within one year
Amounts falling due within 1 year ~note 9

Due between 2 and 5 years
Due after more than 5 years

Amounts falling due after 1 year - note 9

The Group The Company
2022 2021 2022 2021
£ £ £ £
332,833 332,833 332,833 332,833
1,331,333 1,331,333 1,331,333 1,331,333
2,626,763 2,907,597 2,626,763 2,907,597
3,958,096 4,238,930 3,958,096 4,238,930
4,290,929 4,571,763 4,290,929 4,571,763

in September 2019 the school consolidated a term loan and property mortgage into a single term loan of £4,992,495,
with repayment terms of 2.19% over Base Rate over 15 years.

(c) COMPOSITION FEES PAYABLE

Due within one year
(Amounts failing due within 1 year)

Due between 2 and 5 years

Due after more than 5 years

Amounts falling due after more than 1 year
-note 9

The Group The Company

2022 2021 2022 2021

£ £ £ £

93,655 68,133 93,655 68,133

218,921 107,237 218,921 107,237

218,921 107,237 218,921 107,237

312,576 175,370 312,576 175,370
a4
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11

RESTRICTED FUNDS

THE GROUP AND THE COMPANY

Appeals General Building Waller

& legacies Fund & Yonge Fund Total

£ £ £ £ £

At 1 August 2021 ' 1,732,086 386,410 - 53,773 2,172,269
Income 178,966 44,577 80,085 1,216 304,844
Expenditure (187,253) (30,902) - (1,130) (219,285)
Gain / (loss) on revaluation 15,053 - - (481) 14,572
Transfer to Unrestricted - - (80,085) - (80,085}
At 31 July 2022 1,738,852 400,085 - 53,378 2,192,315

The Appeals fund holds specific funds held to provide bursaries in accordance with donor wishes. The total includes the
Bramston fund which holds investments, the interest from which is used to fund hardship bursaries, and the Bramston
Bursary Foundation {BBF) the sole focus of which is to provide full bursaries for girls in care, or who may be on the edge
of care.

Legacies are funds donated with specific conditions attached.

The building fund held the donations from a widower of a St Swithun’s Old Girl to fund an academic enrichment building
on the school site. The building was completed in summer 2022.

The General Purpose fund provides annual speech day prizes and contains donations earmarked by donors, voluntary
charity collections by the staff and pupils and the PTA funds.

The Charlotte M Yonge prize for £100 is awarded for three years to assist former pupils in the purchase of books.
The Waller Fund provides prizes annually of £100 and £50 respectively to the Head and Deputy Head girls for the year. It
also funds the Mowbray prize for £100 which is awarded for three years to assist former pupils in the purchase of books.

This scholarship is awarded for excellent academic achievements whilst at the school.

The level of these awards was reviewed in September 2018.
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11

12

RESTRICTED FUNDS (continued)
ENDOWMENT FUND

THE GROUP AND THE COMPANY

At 1 August 2021

Income

Expenditure

Loss on revaluation of investment

At 31 July 2022

DESIGNATED FUNDS

THE GROUP AND THE COMPANY

Pension

Scheme

Provision

£

At 1 August 2021 422,000
Surplus for the year -
Transfer to designated funds -
At 31 July 2022 422,000

TOTAL
DESIGNATED
FUNDS

£

422,000

422,000

Livy

Scholarship Total

£ £

70,705 70,705

1,128 1,128
(2,000) (2,000)
(3,614) (3,614)

66,219 66,219

TOTAL

General UNRESTRICTED
funds FUNDS

£ £
29,833,470 30,255,470
445,655 445,655
30,279,125 30,701,125

The Dr Jenny Livy Scholarship Fund was created and generously supported by the parents of a former pupil to recognise
Dr Jenny Livy’s contribution to St Swithun’s School.

A Dr Jenny Livy Scholarship is awarded to a member of the L6 at the start of the academic year to a girl who shows
academic promise, intellectual curiosity, a unique independence of mind and who participates in the wider life of the
school community. The award will be made to a girl who was in U5 in the previous academic year. The headmistress is
responsible for awarding this scholarship.

The level of this award is currently £2,000. This figure will be reviewed every 5 years (next Sept 2024} and increased by
an agreed amount in line with fee levels. In any year if there is no suitable scholarship candidate, or the fund’s income
exceeds expenditure, then the amount is to be reinvested into the endowed fund.

The funds for this scholarship are endowed in a separate fund clearly defined. Funds are currently invested in M & G
Charibond. Ongoing investment decisions will be made in accordance with the school’s investment policy.

The school has established a designated fund to meet future contributions to the support staff final salary pension

scheme as required. Details of the scheme are contained in note 18.
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13 ANALYSIS OF NET ASSETS BETWEEN FUNDS

THE GROUP
Fund balances at 31 July 2022 Unrestricted Endowment Restricted Total
£ £ £ £
Tangible fixed assets 31,648,226 - - 31,648,226
Investments ) . 750,000 : 51,847 1,367,016 2,168,863
Current assets 5,570,840 14,372 825,299 6,410,511
Current liabilities (3,069,199) - - (3,069,199)
Long term liabilities (4,198,742) - - (4,198,742)
30,701,125 66,219 2,192,315 32,959,659
THE COMPANY
Fund balances at 31 July 2022 Unrestricted Endowment Restricted Total
£ £ £ £
Tangible fixed assets 30,949,721 - - 30,949,721
Investments 750,001 51,847 1,367,016 2,168,864
Current assets 5,458,741 14,372 825,299 6,298,412
Current liabilities (2,988,134) - - (2,988,134)
Long term liabilities (4,198,742) - - (4,198,742)
29,971,587 66,219 2,192,315 32,230,121
14 (a) RECONCILIATION OF NET INCOME TO NET CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITES
2022 2021
£ £
Net incoming resources {page 29) 461,215 1,603,394
Elimination of non-operating cash flows
- (Gains) / losses on investments (10,958} (165,729)
- Investment income (46,630) (43,816)
- Finance costs less grant income 121,584 140,169
Depreciation charge 1,063,398 1,029,086
(Increase) / decrease in debtors 9,562 (116,371)
Decrease in creditors excluding bank loans {(7,460) (29,381)
Net cash inflow from operations 1,590,711 2,417,352
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14 {b) ANALYSIS OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

2022 2021

£ £

Cash at bank - unrestricted 4,424,294 4,495,876
Deposits - unrestricted 656,960 739,993
Cash at bank — restricted 729,223 725,843
Deposits - restricted 110,448 109,226
5,920,925 6,070,938

15 CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

At 31 July 2022 the Group had capital commitments of £54,715 (2021: £80,502). All outstanding sums including
retentions on capital contracts have been accrued in liabilities as at 31 July 2022.

16 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

There were no contingent liabilities at 31 July 2022 or at 31 July 2021.

17 TAXATION

St. Swithun’s School (Winchester) is a registered charity (number 307335) and is potentially exempt from taxation of
income and gains falling within sections 466 to 493 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 and section 521 to 536 of the income
Tax Act 2007.

18 PENSION SCHEMES
TEACHING STAFF - Teachers’ pension scheme

The School participates in the Teachers’ Pension Scheme (“the TPS”) for its teaching staff. The pension charge for the
year includes contributions payable to the TPS of £1,004,538 (2021 £1,126,985) and at the year-end £nil (2021: £nil} was
accrued in respect of contributions to this scheme.

The TPS is an unfunded multi-employer defined benefits pension scheme governed by The Teachers’ Pensions Regulations
2010 (as amended) and The Teachers’ Pension Scheme Regulations 2014 (as amended). Members contribute on a “pay
as you go” basis with contributions from members and the employer being credited to the Exchequer. Retirement and
other pension benefits are paid by public funds provided by Parliament.

The employer contribution rate is set by the Secretary of State following scheme valuations undertaken by the
Government Actuary’s Department. The most recent actuarial valuation of the TPS was prepared as at 31 March 2016
and the Valuation Report, which was published in March 2019, confirmed that the employer contribution rate for the TPS
would increase from 16.4% to 23.6% from 1 September 2019. Employers are also required to pay a scheme administration
levy of 0.08% giving a total employer contribution rate of 23.68%.

The 31 March 2016 Valuation Report was prepared in accordance with the benefits set out in the scheme regulations and
under the approach specified in the Directions, as they applied at 5 March 2019. However, the assumptions were
considered and set by the Department for Education prior to the ruling in the ‘McCloud/Sargeant case’. This case has
required the courts to consider cases regarding the implementation of the 2015 reforms to Public Service Pensions
including the Teachers’ Pensions.
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18 PENSION SCHEMES (continued)

On 27 June 2019 the Supreme Court denied the government permission to appeal the Court of Appeal’s judgment that
transitional provisions introduced to the reformed pension schemes in 2015 gave rise to unlawful age discrimination. The
government is respecting the Court’s decision and has said it will engage fully with the Employment Tribunal as well as
employer and member representatives to agree how the discriminations will be remedied. The government announced
on 4 February 2021 that it intends to proceed with a deferred choice underpin under which members will be able to
choose either legacy or reformed scheme benefits in respect of their scrvice during the period between 1 April 2015 and

-31 March 2022 at the point they become payable.

The TPS is subject to a cost cap mechanism which was put in place to protect taxpayers against unforeseen changes in
scheme costs. The Chief Secretary to the Treasury, having in 2018 announced that there would be a review of this cost
cap mechanism, in January 2019 announced a pause to the cost cap mechanism following the Court of Appeal’s ruling in
the McCloud/Sargeant case and until there is certainty about the value of pensions to employees from April 2015
onwards. The pause was lifted in July 2020, and a consultation was launched on 24 June on proposed changes to the cost
control mechanism following a review by the Government Actuary. Following a public consultation, the Government have
accepted three key proposals recommended by the Government Actuary, and are aiming to implement these changes in

time for the 2020 valuations.

The 2016 cost control valuations have since been completed in January 2022, and the results indicated that there would
be no changes to benefits or member contributions required. The results of the cost cap valuation are not used to set the
employer contribution rate, and HM Treasury has confirmed that any changes to the employer contribution rate resulting

from the 2020 valuations will take effect in April 2024.

Until the 2020 valuation is completed it is not possible to conclude on any financial impact or future changes to the
contribution rates of the TPS. Accordingly, no provision for any additional past benefit pension costs is included in these

financial statements.

NON-TEACHING STAFF — Defined contribution scheme

The school operates a defined contribution, stakeholder compatible, group personal pension for all non-teaching
employees and teachers who have opted-out of Teachers’ Pensions. The employer pays an age-related contribution of
7 —14% for support staff and 18.2% for teachers, provided that the employee pays a minimum contribution of 3-5%. The

pension charge for the year was £462,256 (2011: £380,085).

NON-TEACHING STAFF — Defined benefit scheme

The employer operates a defined benefit scheme in the UK. This is a separate trustee administered fund holding the
pension scheme assets to meet the long term pension liabilities. A full actuarial valuation was carried out as at 01 January
2021 and updated to 31 July 3022 by a qualified actuary, independent of the scheme’s sponsoring employer. The major

assumptions used by the actuary are shown below.

This more recent finalised actuarial valuation, which was produced as at 01 January 2021, showed that the scheme’s
assets equalled the scheme’s technical provisions resulting in a funding level of 100%. {n addition and in accordance with
this actuarial valuation, the employer has agreed with the trustees that it will meet expenses of the scheme and levies to
the Pension Protection Fund. As there was no shortfall at the valuation date, no contributions are payable in respect of

the technical provisions.

Since August 2016 a designated fund has been established by the school to meet future contributions as required. As at
31 July 2022 the balance stands at £422,000. The FRS$102 calculation by the actuary calculates a scheme surplus of £655K
(2021: £666K). However, in accordance with paragraph 28.22 of FRS102 the net pension asset has been restricted to the
value of the scheme’s future pension cost less future employee contributions. The net pension asset therefore becomes

£nil. For 2022 and 2021 there are no actuarial movements that require recognition in the SOFA.
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18

PENSION SCHEMES {continued)

(a) Present vaiues of defined benefit obligation, fair value of assets and defined benefit asset (liability)

The pension charge for the year was £45,280 for admin charges and trustee and independent advice (2021 £40,487).

The assets, funded obligations and notional surplus in the scheme as at 31 July 2022, 31 July 2021 and 31 July 2020 were

as follows:
2022 2022 2021 2021 2020 2020
Market Market Market
Value  Proportion Value  Proportion Value  Proportion
£000 £000 £/000
Equities 0 0% 0 0% 0 0%
Index linked gilts 319 10% 581 13% 580 13%
Cash 6 0% 34 1% 8 0%
Insured pensions 1,116 25% 1,206 26%
Buyout aware funds 2,710 61% 2,836 61%
Other 2,953 90%
Fair value of plan assets 3,278 4,441 4,640
Value of funded obligations (2,623) (3,775) (3,844)
Surplus 655 666 796
Scheme surplus restriction (655) {666) (796)
Surplus recognised in nil nil nil

balance sheet

None of the fair values of the assets shown above include any direct investments in the employer's own financial
instruments or any property occupied by, or other assets used by the employer.

{b) Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of the defined benefit obligation

Year to Year to

31 July 2022 31 July 2021

£000 £'000

Opening defined benefit obligation 3,775 3,844
Current service cost - -
Interest cost 59 56
Actuarial losses {gains) (1,061) 30
Past service cost - -
Settlements or curtailments - -
Benefits paid (150) (155)
Clasing defined benefit obligation 2,623 3,775

e

<

The English High Court ruling in Lloyds Banking Group Pension Trustees Limited vs Lloyds Bank plc and others was
published on 26 October 2018, and held that UK pension schemes with Guaranteed Minimum Pensions (GMPs) accrued
from 17 May 1990 must equalise for the different effects of these GMPs between men and women. The case also gave
some guidance on related matters, including the methods for equalisation.

The scheme was not contracted out and so is unaffected by this legislation.
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18 PENSION SCHEMES (continued)

(c) Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of the fair value of plan assets

Year to Year to
31 July 2022 31 July 2021
£000 £'000
Opening fair value of plan assets 4,441 4,640
Interest income 70 68
Actuarial gains / (losses) (1,083) (112)
Contributions - -
Benefits paid (150) (155)
Closing fair value of plan assets 3,278 4,441

The actual return on the plan assets over the year to 31 July 2022 was (£1,013,000) (2021: (£44,000)).

(d) Defined benefit costs recognised in profit and loss

Year to Year to
31 July 2022 31 July 2021
£'000 £000

Current service cost - -
Net interest cost - -
Expenses - -
Losses / (gains) on settlements or curtailments - -
Losses / {gains) due to benefit changes - -

Defined benefit costs recognised in profit and loss account - -

(e) Analysis of the actuarial gains/ (losses) recognised in OCI

Actuarial gains or losses are recognised immediately via Other Comprehensive Income (OCI).
The amounts for the year are:

Year to Year to

31 July 2022 31 July 2021

£'000 £'000

Return on plan assets {excluding amounts included (1,083) (112)

in net interest cost) - gain / (loss)

Experience losses arising on plan liabilities 318 44

Effect of changes in the demographic and financial 743 (74)
assumptions underlying the present value of liabilities

Effect of changes in the amount of surplus that is 22 142

not recoverable (excluding amounts included in net interest)

Actuarial (loss)/gain recognised in statement of financial activities - -
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18 PENSION SCHEMES (continued)

PENSION SCHEME ASSUMPTIONS

The life expectancy is based upon mortality assumptions. Assuming retirement at age 65, the life expectancy in years is

as follows:

31 July 2022 31 July 2021 31 July 2020
For a male aged 65 now 255 25.5 25.5
At 65 for a male member aged 45 now 27.5 27.4 27.3
For a female aged 65 now 27.5 27.4 27.3
At 65 for a female member aged 45 now 29.1 29.0 29.0

31 July 2022 31 July 2021 31 July 2020
Discount rate 3.5% 1.6% - 1.5%
Inflation assumption (RP1) 3.5% 3.2% 3.2%
Inflation assumption (CPI) 2.9% 2.2% 2.2%
Allowance for revaluation of deferred pensions of 2.9% 2.2% 2.2%
CPlor 5% p.a. if less
Allowance for pension in payment increases of RPI 3.5% 3.2% 3.1%

or 5% p.a. if less
No allowance has been made for the commutation of pensions for cash at retirement.
The best estimate of contributions to be paid by the employer to the scheme for the year commencing 01 August 2022
is £nil.
19 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In 2022 the School charged £11,029 (2021: £5,672) to its wholly owned subsidiary St. Swithun’s School Letting Company
Limited for use of the school’s facilities.

In 2022 St. Swithun’s School Letting Company Limited made a gift aid payment of £88,939 to the schoo! as its wholly
owned parent company, being the total net profit for the year to 31 July 2021. An equivalent payment will be made for
the 2022 profit for the year of £131,587.

20 OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENT

The following operating lease payments are committed to be paid within one year.

Equipment operating iease

2022 2021
£ £

Expiring:
Within one year 73,800 59,767
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21 SUBSIDIARY CHARITY

On S5 May 2009 the school registered a subsidiary charity — St. Swithun’s School Bursary Fund. St. Swithun’s School
Bursary Fund is held on trust by the Trustee to apply income and capital for the provision of bursaries at the school.

St. Swithun’s School Bursary Fund is unincorporated, has no share capital, had not commenced its activities and has no

net assets as at 31 July 2022 (2021: £nil). St Swithun's School (Winchester) is the sole trustee and so St. Swithun’s School
~Bursary Fund is included in the accounts on that basis.
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22 CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVIITES — COMPARATIVE FIGURES BY FUND TYPE

School
Note 2021
£
Income and endowments from
Donations -
Charitable activities
- Schoolfees 1 13,901,455
- Ancillary trading 675,869
income 3
Trading turnover 2 150,207
Investment income 1,723
Other income 3 361,499
Total Incoming 15,090,753
Resources
Expenditure on
Charitable activities 14,793,136
Raising funds 4 83,351
Other- Finance costs 4 183,069
Total Resources 15,059,556
Expended 4
Gains / {losses) on -
investments
NET INCOME FOR THE 31,197
YEAR
Transfer of funds 1,088,476
Pension scheme -
actuarial losses 18
NET MOVEMENT IN 1,119,673
FUNDS
Balance brought forward 29,135,797
Balance carried forward 30,255,470

Endowment
Fund

2021

£

1,342

1,342

2,000

2,000

{962)

(1,620)

(1,620)

72,325

70,705

All of the school’s activities relate to continuing operations.
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Restricted
funds Total Total
2021 2021 2020

£ £ £
1,571,584 1,571,584 150,971
- 13,901,455 13,057,820
- 675,869 597,655
- 150,207 317,962
40,751 43,816 63,651
- 361,499 456,851
1,612,335 16,704,430 14,644,910
205,209 15,000,345 14,626,725
- 83,351 127,864
- 183,069 120,045
205,209 15,266,765 14,874,634
166,691 165,729 {(12,208)
1,573,817 1,603,394 (241,932)
(1,088,476) - -
485,341 1,603,394 (241,932)
1,686,928 30,895,050 31,136,982
2,172,269 32,498,444 30,895,050
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22 FUNDS - COMPARATIVE FIGURES

{a) RESTRICTED FUNDS — COMPARATIVE FIGURES

THE GROUP AND THE COMPANY

At 1 August 2020
Income

Expenditure

Gain on revaluation
Transfer to Unrestricted

At 31 July 2021

(b) ENDOWMENT FUND — COMPARATIVE FIGURES

THE GROUP AND THE COMPANY

At 1 August 2020

Income

Expenditure

Loss on revaluation of investment

- At 31 july 2021

(c) DESIGNATED FUND — COMPARATIVE FIGURES

At 1 August 2020
Surplus for the year
Transfer to designated funds

At 31 July 2021

Bramston General Building Waller
Appeal Purpose Fund & Yonge Fund

£ - £ £ . - £
1,473,003 80,884 85,000 48,041
594,838 12,837 1,003,476 1,183
(177,965) (26,593) - (650)
161,492 - - 5,199

- - (1,088,476) -
2,051,368 67,128 - 53,773
Livy

Scholarship

£

72,325

1,342
(2,000}

(962)

70,705

Pension TOTAL TOTAL
Scheme DESIGNATED General UNRESTRICTED
Provision FUNDS funds FUNDS
£ £ £ £
422,000 422,000 28,713,797 29,135,797
- - 1,119,673 1,119,673

422,000 422,000 29,833,470 30,255,470
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Total
£

1,686,928
1,612,334
(205,208)
166,691
(1,088,476)

2,172,269

Total
£

72,325
1,342
(2,000)

(962)

70,705
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23

ANALYSIS OF NET ASSETS BETWEEN FUNDS — COMPARATIVE FIGURES

THE GROUP
Fund balances at 31 July 2021

Tangible fixed assets
Investments

Current assets
Current liabilities
Long term liabilities

THE COMPANY
Fund balances at 31 July 2021

Tangible fixed assets
Investments
Current assets
Current liabilities
Long term liabilities

Unrestricted Endowment Restricted Total
£ £ £ £
32,076,688 - - 32,076,688
- 55,461 1,352,444 1,407,905

5,735,017 15,244 819,825 6,570,086
(3,210,068) - - (3,210,068)
(4,346,167) - - (4,346,167)
30,255,470 70,705 2,172,269 32,498,444
Unrestricted Endowment Restricted Total
£ £ £ £
31,376,908 - - 31,376,908
1 55,461 1,352,444 1,407,906

5,652,057 15,244 819,825 6,487,126
(3,156,867) - - (3,156,867)
(4,346,167) - - (4,346,167)
29,525,932 70,705 2,172,269 31,768,906
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